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KELLY C. BOWERS, CaI. Bar No. 164007 
MARTIN J. MURPHY, Cal. Bar No. 130693 
PETER DEL GRECO, Cal. Bar No. 164925 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Securities and Exchange Cqmmission 
Randall R. Lee, Regional Director 
Sandra J. Harris, Associate Re ional Director 
5670 Wikhire Boulevard, 1 lh%Io0r 
Los Angeles, California 90036-3648 

;%%%)g’ [323] 965-3908 
323 965-3498 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
&OMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

JAMES P. LEWIS, JR. individually 
and doin business as $INANCIAL 
ADVISCkY CONSULTANTS, 
TNCUME FUND, ETD. AND 
GROWTH FUND, LTD., 

Defendant. 

Case No. cvo3-9354 JSL (VBG) 

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF TJ3E 
mDER4L SECURITIES LAWS 

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission {“Commission”) alleges as 

folIows: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 

20(b), 20(d)( 1) and 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), 15 

U-S.C. $5 77t(b), 77t(d)( 1 )  & 77v(a), and Sections 2 I Id)( I), 2 1 (d)(3)(A), 2 1 (e)  

and 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. 

$§ 78(u)(d)( l), 78u(d)(3)(A), 78u(e) & 78aa. Defendant has, directly or indirectly, 

nade use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or 
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of the facilities of a national securities exchange in connection with the 

transactions, acts, practices and courses of business alleged in this Complaint. 

2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to Section 22(a) of the 

Securities Act, 25 U.S,C. 5 77v(a), and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 

6 78aa, because the defendant resides in this district and certain of the 

transactions, acts, practices and courses of conduct constituting violations of the 

federal securities laws occurred within this district, 

SUMMARY 

3. For almost 20 years, James P. Lewis, Jr. has been doing business as 

Financial Advisory Consultants ("FAC"), Financial Advisory Consultants offers 

and sells securities in the Income Fund, Ltd. and the Growth Fund, Ltd, 

(collectively, the "Funds"). 

4. Defendant has sold securities in the Funds to over 5,200 investor 

accounts whose combined balances in the Funds (i-e., the principal investment 

p h s  purported profits minus any withdrawals) exceed $8 13 million. 

5.  No registration statement has been filed or been in effect with respect 

to Financial Advisory Consultants or either of the Funds. 

6.  In response to requests fkom investors to withdraw funds, Defendant 

has defi-auded his investors by misrepresenting that the Funds' accounts are frozen 

by the Department of Homeland Security when the Department of Homeland 

Security has not frozen, and does not have the authority to freeze, the Funds' 

accounts. 

7. Defendant, by engaging in the conduct described in this Complaint, 

has violated the antifraud provisions of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and 
Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder. 

THE DEFENDANT 

8. James P. Lewis, Jr. has residences in Laguna Niguel and Palm Desert, 

California, and is doing business under the fictitious business name ofFinancia1 
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Advisory Consultants ("FAC"), an unincorporated entity with offices in Lake 

Forest, California. 

9. Lewis, individually and doing business through FAC, offers and sells 

securities in the Income Fund, Ltd. (the "Income Fund") and the Growth Fund, 

Etd. (the "Growth Fund") (collectively, the llFunds"). The Funds are 

unincorporated entities controlled by Lewis. 

THE OFFERINGS 

10. The Income Fund purportedly invests in equipment Teasing and 

insurance premium financing programs and has purportedly realized an average 

annual return of more than 19% per year since its inception in 1983. 

1 1 The Growth Fund purportedly buys and sells distressed businesses 

and has purportedly realized an average annual return of ahnost 39% per year 

since its inception in 1987. 

12. Defendant pools investors' monies in a common enterprise, the Funds, 

which, according to the Funds' offering brochure, are llcornprked of a variety of 

investments; each investor owns an interest in every investment." 

13. FAC receives a management fee equal to 5% of the Funds' total 

return, with the remaining 95% purportedly going to the investors. 

14. The interests in the Funds are securities in the form of investment 

contracts in that the investors' fbnds are pooled with the expectation of profit Erom 
Lewis' management of the Funds. 

15. Fund investors receive $1.6 million per month in regular withdrawals 

and until recently $4 to $7 million through special or non-scheduled withdrawals, 

Investors who do not receive regular withdrawals have their purported profits 

reinvested in the Funds. 

16. The investors do not receive audited financial statements or any other 

details concerning the accomplishments of the Funds. Instead, offering materials, 

including offering brochures and monthly newsletters, describe the activities of the 
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Funds in a generic manner that is absent of detail. For example, the Income Fund 

1s said to have "provided financing for several companies" in 2001 and the Growth 

Fund is said to have "closed 26 projects . + . [whereby FAC] purchased the 

businesses for cash and then resold them at a profit" that same year, without 

identifjmg any of the involved entities. Monthly newsletters make similar claims 

in simi€arly vague tern .  

THE DEFENDANT'S FRAUDULENT SCHEME 

17. Although the Funds permit withdrawals upon notice, since at least 

Tune 2003, Lewis has not honored many unscheduled withdrawal requests from 

Fund investors. In other cases, Lewis has honored withdrawal requests only in 

part andor in piecemeal fashion. 

18. Beginning in about June 2003 and continuing through at least August 

2003, Lewis told Fund investors requesting withdrawals that monies of FAC and 

the Growth Fund had been frozen by the Department of Homeland Security 

["DHS'*). Lewis, directly and/or indirectly, told Fund investors that DHS had 

kozen FAC and the Growth Fund monies because FAC had received a wire 

transfer from the Middle East. 

19- In November 2003, Lewis falsely told Fund investors requesting 

withdrawals that Growth Fund monies had been frozen by DHS because investors 

had wired money they received from FAC to Middle Eastern organizations. 

20. In November andor December 2003, Lewis falsely told Fund 

investors requesting withdrawals that the Internal Revenue Service was involved 

in, and complicating, the withdrawal process because investors should have been 

paying taxes on the withdrawals. 

21. Approximately one month ago, FAC's office received a telephone call 

fiom a Mr. Sanchez purportedly from DHS about the freeze. However, that call 

was in fact placed from Lewis' cell phone number. 
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22. DHS does not have the authority to freeze, or block, transfers of 

assets fiom foreign nations to domestic financial institutions. The President has 

delegated that authority, granted to him by the Trading With the Enemy Act of 

1917,40 Stat. 41 1, as amended, 50 U.S.C. App. $ 1 ,  et seq., to the Department of 

Treasury, which in turn has delegated that authority to the Office of Foreign 

Assets Control. 31 CF.R. $500, ef seq. 

23. 
Fund investors. 

24. 

Currently, Lewis has failed to honor many withdrawal requests fiom 

While he has failed to honor many withdrawal requests, Lewis has 

been accepting new investments into the Funds, reinvesting the investors' 

purported profits in the Funds, soliciting certain investors to make additional large 

investments in the Funds, and honoring certain investors' withdrawal requests. In 

addition, on or about July I,  2003, about the time that Lewis began to tell Fund 

investors that FAC accounts had been frozen by the DHS, Lewis withdrew $3 

million fi-om his Income Fund account. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FRAUD IN THE OFF.ER OR SALE OF SECURITIES 

VioIations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act 

25, 

above. 

26. 

The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 77 1 through 24 

Defendant, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

indirectly, in the offer or sale of securities by the use of means or instruments of 

transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails: 

a. 

b. 

with scienter, employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defkaud; 

obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of a 

material fact or by omitting to state a material fact necessary in 

order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 
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c. engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which 

operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser. 

27. By engaging in the conduct described above, defendant violated and, 

unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate, Section 17(a) of the 

Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 77q(a). 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FRAUD IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

PURCHASE OR SALE OF SECURITIES 

Violations of Section lo@) of the Exchange Act 

and Rule lob-5 thereunder 

28. 

above. 

29. 

The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 17 I through 24 

Defendant, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, by the use of 

means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities 

of a national securities exchange, with scienter: 

a. 

b. 

employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud; 

made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a 

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in 

the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading; or 

engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which operated 

or would operate as a fiaud or deceit upon other persons. 

By engaging in the conduct described above, defendant violated and, 

c. 

30. 

unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate, Section lO(b) of the 

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C, 5 78j(b), and Rule 1 Ob-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 

5 240.1 Ob-5. 
** 
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** 
** 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court: 

I. 

Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that the defendant 

committed the alleged violations. 

11. 

Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), 

temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining defendant and his officers, 

agents, servants, employees, attorneys, subsidiaries and affiliates and those 

persons in active concert or participation with him, who receive actual notice of 

the order by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from violating 

Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, Section IO(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 

lob-5 thereunder. 

III. 

Issue in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, a temporary 

restraining order and a preliminary injunction freezing the assets of the defendant; 

prohibiting the defendant from destroying documents; and ordering expedited 

discovery and accountings. 

w. 
Order defendant to disgorge a11 ill-gotten gains from his illegal conduct, 

together with prejudgment interest thereon. 

V. 
Order defendant to pay civil penalties under Section 20(d) of the 

Securities Act, I5 U.S.C. $ 77t(d) arid Section 2 1 (d)(3) of the Exchange Act, 15 

U . S C  0 78u(d)(3). 

VI. 
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2f 

2; 

Zt  

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of 

equity and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry 

out the terms of all orders and decrees that may be entered, or to entertain any 

suitable application or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of this 

court. 

VII. 

Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine to be just 

axK1 necessary. 

DATED: December 22,2003 7-w- 
Peter F. DelGreco 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
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